
CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
Helene Schneider 
Mayor 

 
Paul Casey 

City Administrator 
 Gregg Hart 

Mayor Pro Tempore 
Randy Rowse 
Ordinance Committee Chair 

Ariel Pierre Calonne 
City Attorney 

Dale Francisco 
Finance Committee Chair 

 

Frank Hotchkiss 
Cathy Murillo 
Bendy White 

City Hall 
735 Anacapa Street 

http://www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov 
 

MARCH 3, 2015 
AGENDA 

 
ORDER OF BUSINESS:  Regular meetings of the Finance Committee and the Ordinance Committee begin at 12:30 p.m.  
The regular City Council meeting begins at 2:00 p.m. in the Council Chamber at City Hall.   
 
REPORTS:  Copies of the reports relating to agenda items are available for review in the City Clerk's Office, at the Central 
Library, and http://www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov.  In accordance with state law requirements, this agenda generally contains 
only a brief general description of each item of business to be transacted or discussed at the meeting.  Should you wish 
more detailed information regarding any particular agenda item, you are encouraged to obtain a copy of the Council 
Agenda Report (a "CAR") for that item from either the Clerk's Office, the Reference Desk at the City's Main Library, or 
online at the City's website (http://www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov).  Materials related to an item on this agenda submitted to 
the City Council after distribution of the agenda packet are available for public inspection in the City Clerk’s Office located 
at City Hall, 735 Anacapa Street, Santa Barbara, CA 93101, during normal business hours. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT:  At the beginning of the 2:00 p.m. session of each regular City Council meeting, and at the 
beginning of each special City Council meeting, any member of the public may address the City Council concerning any 
item not on the Council's agenda.  Any person wishing to make such address should first complete and deliver a “Request 
to Speak” form prior to the time that public comment is taken up by the City Council.  Should City Council business 
continue into the evening session of a regular City Council meeting at 6:00 p.m., the City Council will allow any member of 
the public who did not address them during the 2:00 p.m. session to do so.  The total amount of time for public comments 
will be 15 minutes, and no individual speaker may speak for more than 1 minute.  The City Council, upon majority vote, 
may decline to hear a speaker on the grounds that the subject matter is beyond their jurisdiction. 
 
REQUEST TO SPEAK:  A member of the public may address the Finance or Ordinance Committee or City Council 
regarding any scheduled agenda item.  Any person wishing to make such address should first complete and deliver a 
“Request to Speak” form prior to the time that the item is taken up by the Finance or Ordinance Committee or City 
Council. 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR:  The Consent Calendar is comprised of items that will not usually require discussion by the City 
Council.  A Consent Calendar item is open for discussion by the City Council upon request of a Councilmember, City staff, 
or member of the public.  Items on the Consent Calendar may be approved by a single motion.  Should you wish to 
comment on an item listed on the Consent Agenda, after turning in your “Request to Speak” form, you should come 
forward to speak at the time the Council considers the Consent Calendar. 
 
AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  If you need auxiliary aids or services or staff assistance to attend or participate 
in this meeting, please contact the City Administrator’s Office at 564-5305.  If possible, notification at least 48 hours prior 
to the meeting will usually enable the City to make reasonable arrangements. Specialized services, such as sign language 
interpretation or documents in Braille, may require additional lead time to arrange. 
 
TELEVISION COVERAGE:  Each regular City Council meeting is broadcast live in English and Spanish on City TV 
Channel 18 and rebroadcast in English on Wednesdays and Thursdays at 7:00 p.m. and Saturdays at 9:00 a.m., and in 
Spanish on Sundays at 4:00 p.m.  Each televised Council meeting is closed captioned for the hearing impaired.  Check 
the City TV program guide at www.citytv18.com for rebroadcasts of Finance and Ordinance Committee meetings, and for 
any changes to the replay schedule. 

http://www.ci.santa-barbara.ca.us/
http://www.santabarbaraca.gov/


 

3/3/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 1 

 
 

ORDER OF BUSINESS 
 

 12:30 p.m. - Finance Committee Meeting, David Gebhard Public Meeting Room, 
   630 Garden Street 
 2:00 p.m. - City Council Meeting 
 
 
ORDINANCE COMMITTEE AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING S 

FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING - 12:30 P.M. IN THE DAVID GEBHARD PUBLIC 
MEETING ROOM, 630 GARDEN STREET (120.03)  

Subject:  Fiscal Year 2015 Mid-Year Review 

Recommendation: That the Finance Committee recommend that Council: 
A. Hear a report from staff on the status of revenues and expenditures in relation to 

budget for the six months ended December 31, 2014; 
B. Accept the Fiscal Year 2015 Interim Financial Statements for the Six Months 

Ended December 31, 2014; and 
C. Approve the proposed mid-year adjustments to Fiscal Year 2015 appropriations 

and estimated revenues as detailed in the attached schedule of Proposed Mid-
Year Adjustments. 

  (See Agenda Item No. 8) 



 

3/3/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 2 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING – 2:00 P.M. 
AFTERNOON  SE SSION 

 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
 
CEREMONIAL ITEMS 

1. Subject:  Employee Recognition - Service Award Pins (410.01) 

Recommendation:  That Council authorize the City Administrator to express the 
City's appreciation to employees who are eligible to receive service award pins 
for their years of service through March 31, 2015. 
  

CHANGES TO THE AGENDA 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR 

2. Subject:  Minutes 

Recommendation:  That Council waive further reading and approve the minutes 
of the special meeting of February 18, 2015. 
  

3. Subject:  Approval Of Preferential Parking For Santa Barbara Old Town 
Trolley (550.01) 

Recommendation:  That Council approve an application for preferential parking 
by the Santa Barbara Old Town Trolley Company until such time that the City 
Council terminates the privilege, the applicant no longer meets the requirements 
of Santa Barbara Municipal Code 10.44.250, or Santa Barbara Municipal Code 
10.44.250 is revised, whichever occurs first. 
  



 

3/3/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 3 

CONSENT CALENDAR (CONT’D) 

4. Subject:  Professional Services Agreement with Godbe Research (530.01) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Approve and authorize the City Administrator to negotiate and execute a 

not-to-exceed $36,000 contract for professional services with Godbe 
Research to conduct a comprehensive opinion poll related to a possible 
revenue generating ballot measure; and 

B. Direct the Infrastructure Council Committee to work with staff and the 
consultant to develop the poll and report back by May 2015. 

 
 
NOTICES 

5. The City Clerk has on Thursday, February 26, 2015, posted this agenda in the 
Office of the City Clerk, on the City Hall Public Notice Board on the outside 
balcony of City Hall, and on the Internet. 

6. A City Council site visit is scheduled for Monday, March 9, 2015, at 1:30 p.m. to 
the property located at 1912 Mission Ridge Road, which is the subject of an 
appeal hearing set for March 10, 2015, at 2:00 p.m. 

 
This concludes the Consent Calendar. 
 
 
REPORT FROM THE FINANCE COMMITTEE 
 
 
MAYOR AND COUNCIL REPORTS 

7. Subject:  Interview And Possible Appointment For Vacancy On Single 
Family Design Board (140.05) 

Recommendation:  That Council hold an interview, and possibly appoint, the 
applicant for the unscheduled vacancy on the Single Family Design Board. 
  



 

3/3/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 4 

CITY COUNCIL ADMINISTRATIVE AND ATTORNEY REPORTS 

FINANCE DEPARTMENT 

8. Subject:  Fiscal Year 2015 Mid-Year Review (230.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Hear a report from staff on the status of revenues and expenditures in 

relation to budget for the six months ended December 31, 2014; 
B. Accept the Fiscal Year 2015 Interim Financial Statements for the Six 

Months Ended December 31, 2014; and 
C. Approve the proposed mid-year adjustments to Fiscal Year 2015 

appropriations and estimated revenues as detailed in the attached 
schedule of Proposed Mid-Year Adjustments. 

 
 
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 

9. Subject:  Capital Improvement Projects:  Second Quarter Report For Fiscal 
Year 2015 (230.01) 

Recommendation:  That Council receive the City's Capital Improvement Projects 
Second Quarter Report for Fiscal Year 2015. 
  

COUNCIL AND STAFF COMMUNICATIONS 
 
 
COUNCILMEMBER COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENT REPORTS 
 
 
CLOSED SESSIONS 

10. Subject:  Conference With City Attorney - Pending Litigation  (160.03) 

Recommendation:  That Council hold a closed session to consider pending 
litigation pursuant to subsection (d)(1) of section 54956.9 of the Government 
Code and take appropriate action as needed.  The pending litigation is Debra A. 
Corral, et al., v. City of Santa Barbara, et al., SBSC Case No.1466439. 
 Scheduling:  Duration, 15 minutes; anytime 
 Report:  None anticipated 
  

ADJOURNMENT 

To Monday, March 9, 2015, at 1:30 p.m. at 1912 Mission Ridge Road.  (See Item No. 6) 
 



File Code 120.03 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 

FINANCE COMMITTEE 

MEETING AGENDA 

 

 
DATE: March 3, 2015 Dale Francisco, Chair 
TIME: 12:30 P.M.  Bendy White  
PLACE: David Gebhard Public Meeting Room Gregg Hart 
 630 Garden Street  
 
Paul Casey  Robert Samario 
City Administrator Finance Director/ 

        Acting Assistant City 
Administrator 
 

 
ITEMS TO BE CONSIDERED: 

 
1. Subject:  Fiscal Year 2015 Mid-Year Review 

 
Recommendation: That the Finance Committee recommend that Council: 
A. Hear a report from staff on the status of revenues and expenditures in  

relation to budget for the six months ended December 31, 2014; 
B. Accept the Fiscal Year 2015 Interim Financial Statements for the Six  

Months Ended December 31, 2014; and 
C. Approve the proposed mid-year adjustments to Fiscal Year 2015  

appropriations and estimated revenues as detailed in the attached 
schedule of Proposed Mid-Year Adjustments. 

   (See Agenda Item No. 8) 
 

 



Agenda Item No.  1 

File Code No.  410.01 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: March 3, 2015 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: City Administrator’s Office 
 
SUBJECT: Employee Recognition – Service Award Pins 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council authorize the City Administrator to express the City’s appreciation to 
employees who are eligible to receive service award pins for their years of service through 
March 31, 2015. 
 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Since 1980, the City Employees’ Recognition Program has recognized length of City 
Service.  Service award pins are presented to employees for every five years of service.  
Those employees achieving 25 years of service or more are eligible to receive their pins in 
front of the City Council. 
 
Attached is a list of those employees who will be awarded pins for their service through 
March 31, 2015. 
 
 
ATTACHMENT: March 2015 Service Awards 
 
PREPARED BY: Myndi Hegeman, Administrative Specialist 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Kristine Schmidt, Administrative Services Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



ATTACHMENT 
 

 
 
 

MARCH 2015 SERVICE AWARDS 
March 3, 2015, Council Meeting 

 
 
 
15 YEARS 

Linda Tuomi, Office Specialist II, Police Department 

Aundray Richey, Senior Streets Maintenance Worker, Public Works Department 

Juan Salcedo, Senior Streets Maintenance Worker, Public Works Department 

Jeffery Miller, Senior Grounds Maintenance Worker, Parks and Recreation Department 

Stephen Williams, Grounds Maintenance Worker II, Parks and Recreation Department 

Tracy Lincoln, Airport Operations Manager, Airport Department 

 

20 YEARS  

John Franklin, Fire Engineer, Fire Department 

Michael De Ponce, Fire Battalion Chief, Fire Department 

Michael Hoose, Fire Captain, Fire Department 

Michael Myers, Fire Captain, Fire Department 

 

25 YEARS  

Robert Hazel, Fire Captain, Fire Department 

James Pfleging, Police Lieutenant, Police Department 

 

30 YEARS  

David Aguailar, Fire Captain, Fire Department 

Thomas Eccles, Police Officer, Police Department 

Primitivo Gonzalez, Lead Equipment Technician, Public Works Department 

 

35 YEARS  

Mark Alvarado, Equipment Operator, Parks and Recreation Department 



2/18/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 1 
MAR 03 2015 #2 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 

 
 

SPECIAL MEETING 
February 18, 2015 

DAVID GEBHARD PUBLIC MEETING ROOM, 630 GARDEN STREET 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Helene Schneider called the meeting to order at 3:02 p.m. 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
Councilmembers present:  Dale Francisco, Gregg Hart, Frank Hotchkiss, Cathy Murillo, 
Randy Rowse, Bendy White, Mayor Schneider. 
Councilmembers absent:  None. 
Staff present:  City Administrator Paul Casey, Deputy City Clerk Susan Tschech. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
No one wished to speak. 
 
NOTICES 
 
The City Clerk has on Thursday, February 12, 2015, posted this agenda in the Office of 
the City Clerk, on the City Hall Public Notice Board on the outside balcony of City Hall, 
and on the Internet. 
 
WORK SESSIONS 
 
Subject:  Fiscal Year 2016 Special Budget Work Session (230.05) 
 
Recommendation:  That Council hold a special work session on the Fiscal Years 2016 
and 2017 financial plan. 
 
Documents: 

- February 18, 2015, report from the Acting Assistant City Administrator/Finance 
Director. 

- PowerPoint presentation prepared and made by Staff. 
 

(Cont’d) 



2/18/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 2 

Subject:  Fiscal Year 2016 Special Budget Work Session (Cont’d) 
 
Speakers: 

- Staff:  City Administrator Paul Casey, Acting Assistant City Administrator/Finance 
Director Robert Samario, Public Works Director Rebecca Bjork, Fire Chief Pat 
McElroy, Police Chief Camerino Sanchez. 

- Members of the Public:  Cynthia Goena, Service Employees International Union 
Local 620. 

 
Discussion: 

City Administrator Casey began Staff’s presentation by stating that the City’s 
budget is in good shape overall and by setting out several competing priorities for 
restored funding.  Finance Director Samario reviewed the current state of the 
City’s finances, represented by both the General Fund and the various Enterprise 
Funds.  He also presented a long-term forecast for General Fund expenditures 
and revenues, and he explained key points, caveats and risks to be mindful of for 
the future.  City Administrator Casey then described in detail priorities identified 
by both Council and Staff for the allocation of increased revenues.  The 
presentation was concluded with a demonstration of the use of OpenGov, an 
online tool providing user-friendly access to the City’s financial data.  
Councilmembers’ questions were answered. 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
Mayor Schneider adjourned the meeting at 4:45 p.m. 
 
 
SANTA BARBARA CITY COUNCIL SANTA BARBARA 
  CITY CLERK'S OFFICE 
 
 
 
  ATTEST:       
HELENE SCHNEIDER  SUSAN TSCHECH, CMC 
MAYOR  DEPUTY CITY CLERK  
 



Agenda Item No.  3 
 

File Code No.  550.01 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 
 
 

 
AGENDA DATE: March 3, 2015 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Engineering Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT: Approval Of Preferential Parking For Santa Barbara Old Town Trolley 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
That Council approve an application for preferential parking by the Santa Barbara Old 
Town Trolley Company until such time that the City Council terminates the privilege, the 
applicant no longer meets the requirements of Santa Barbara Municipal Code 
10.44.250, or Santa Barbara Municipal Code 10.44.250 is revised, whichever occurs 
first. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The Santa Barbara Old Town Trolley Company (Trolley) has applied for preferential 
parking privileges along the north side of Cabrillo Boulevard adjacent to the Visitor’s 
Center, under Section 10.44.250 of the Santa Barbara Municipal Code (see Attachment 
1). 
 
For several decades, the Trolley has picked up and dropped off passengers along the 
south side of Cabrillo Boulevard, just east of State Street, in the Waterfront Shuttle bus 
stop area.  This bus stop was recently closed due to the construction associated with 
the Cabrillo Boulevard Bridge Replacement Project, and will remain closed until that 
project is complete in 2016.  The Trolley has requested an exclusive curb space near 
the Visitor Center to facilitate passenger loading and unloading in this area. 
 
The Trolley operates a closed loop sightseeing bus service with a route that passes by 
many of Santa Barbara’s major attractions.  Passengers can get on and off the trolley 
along the fixed route (see Attachment 2).  Also along the route, the Trolley uses various 
bus stops and loading zones.  The area along the north side of Cabrillo Boulevard, near 
the Visitor’s Center, can become very congested with sightseeing and tour buses, 
making it difficult for the Trolley to safely load and unload passengers.  The Trolley 
operates daily between 9:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m. 



Council Agenda Report 
Approval Of Preferential Parking For Santa Barbara Old Town Trolley 
March 3, 2015 
Page 2 

 

Historical Use of Bus Stops  
 
Currently, due to the existing ordinances in the Santa Barbara Municipal Code, any 
vehicle defined as a bus (i.e., designed for carrying 15 or more passengers) may use a 
bus stop.  Bus stops are not limited to buses that are operated by the Santa Barbara 
Metropolitan Transit District (MTD).  This has resulted in a number of sightseeing buses 
using bus stops intended for MTD, most notably the bus stop on eastbound Cabrillo 
Boulevard, just east of State Street, where the Landshark picks up and drops off 
passengers.  None of the sightseeing buses using this area have a Public Works Permit 
for the use of the public right of way.  MTD has requested that the City update the 
ordinance to limit the use of bus stops to MTD and regional commuter buses only.  Staff 
plans to return to Council to recommend that update. 
 
Existing Municipal Code Ordinance Regarding Preferential Parking 
 
Under Section 10.44.250, Council may grant a sightseeing bus applicant a preferential 
right to a parking space, up to 35-feet in length, on any City street.  The applicant must 
operate at least six days per week on a fixed route, and not less than 12 consecutive 
weeks at a time.  The Trolley operates daily between 9:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m. over a 
fixed route and Staff agrees that preferential parking will facilitate the loading and 
unloading of passengers.  The applicant must pay a fee of five dollars and meet the 
City’s insurance requirements.  The last time that this section of the municipal code was 
invoked was during the 1980’s. 
 
Staff recommends that the Trolley be granted a preferential parking space, 35-feet in 
length, along Cabrillo Boulevard, adjacent to the Visitor Center until the applicant either 
no longer meets the requirements of Santa Barbara Municipal Code 10.44.250, or 
Santa Barbara Municipal Code 10.44.250 is updated.  City Council may, at its discretion 
with or without good cause being shown, terminate the privilege of preferential parking 
at any time per Santa Barbara Municipal Code 10.44.270 
 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 1. Vicinity Map of East Cabrillo Boulevard 
 2. Santa Barbara Old Town Trolley Route Map 
 3. Application Letter and Insurance  
 
PREPARED BY: Derrick Bailey, Supervising Transportation Engineer/mj 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Rebecca J. Bjork, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator’s Office 
 
 
 



mjackson
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT 1



Santa Barbara Old Town Trolley Route Map

mjackson
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT 2

mjackson
Typewritten Text

mjackson
Typewritten Text



mjackson
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT 3



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

January 15, 2015 

 

 

23 EAST CABRILLO BLVD. 

SANTA BARBARA, CA 93101 
 
(805) 965-0353 

(805) 965-1075  FAX 

WWW.SBTROLLEY.COM 

 

RE: Additional Information for Parking Permit 

 

1. Emergency Contact –  

Reginald Drew (805) 729-6781 

Teddi Drew – (805) 729-4589 

2. Actual Hours of Sight Seeing Operation – 9:00am – 6:00pm ; 365 days a year 

3. Business License – See attachment  

4. Insurance –  

a. The number, length, and passenger capacity of vehicles – 2 Trolleys 

operating the tour daily, Length = 35ft , passenger capacity = 30 

passengers 

b. Frequency use of the stop - The stop is used twice every hour during 

operating hours, in 15 minute increments   









CERTIFICATE HOLDER

© 1988-2010 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.
ACORD 25 (2010/05)

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

CANCELLATION

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

LOCJECT
PRO-POLICY

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

OCCURCLAIMS-MADE

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

GENERAL LIABILITY

PREMISES (Ea occurrence) $
DAMAGE TO RENTED
EACH OCCURRENCE $

MED EXP (Any one person) $

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $

GENERAL AGGREGATE $

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG $

$RETENTIONDED

CLAIMS-MADE

OCCUR

$

AGGREGATE $

EACH OCCURRENCE $UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES  (Attach ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, if more space is required)

INSR
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE POLICY NUMBER 

POLICY EFF
(MM/DD/YYYY)

POLICY EXP
(MM/DD/YYYY) LIMITS

WC STATU-
TORY LIMITS

OTH-
ER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT

$

$

$

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE

If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

(Mandatory in NH)
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY Y / N

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

ANY AUTO
ALL OWNED SCHEDULED

HIRED AUTOS
NON-OWNED

AUTOS AUTOS

AUTOS

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

BODILY INJURY (Per person)

BODILY INJURY (Per accident)
PROPERTY DAMAGE $

$

$
$

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.  NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
ADDL

WVD
SUBR

N / A

$

$

(Ea accident)

(Per accident)

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW.  THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.
IMPORTANT:  If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed.  If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement.  A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

INSURED

PHONE
(A/C, No, Ext):

PRODUCER

ADDRESS:
E-MAIL

FAX
(A/C, No):

CONTACT
NAME:

NAIC #

INSURER A :

INSURER B :

INSURER C :

INSURER D :

INSURER E :

INSURER F :

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

2/2/2015

RRL Insurance Agency
4450 W. Eau Gallie Blvd., Suite 115
Melbourne FL 32934

Wheel Fun Rentals of Santa Barbara, Inc.
DBA: Santa Barbara Trolley Company
23 E. Cabrillo Blvd.
Santa Barbara CA 93101

Occidental Fire & Casualty of NC

Susan Weaver
800-333-7754 321-757-6182

sweaver@euclidins.com

1131939583

A Y

X

X X

CA00040239 2/17/2014 2/17/2015 5,000,000

The City of Santa Barbara, its officers, employees, and agents, shall be covered as additional insureds on the Automobile Liability policy with
respects to the named insureds operations.

30 DAYS

City Clerk
P.O. Box 1990
Santa Barbara CA 93102-1990





Agenda Item No.  4 
File Code No.  530.01 

 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: March 3, 2015 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: City Administrator’s Office 
 
SUBJECT: Professional Services Agreement with Godbe Research 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  That Council:  
 
A. Approve and authorize the City Administrator to negotiate and execute a not-to-

exceed $36,000 contract for professional services with Godbe Research to 
conduct a comprehensive opinion poll related to a possible revenue generating 
ballot measure; and 

B. Direct the Infrastructure Council Committee to work with staff and the consultant 
to develop the poll and report back by May 2015.  

 
DISCUSSION: 
 
In Fall 2014, the City conducted public outreach activities to inform the public about the 
City’s aging facilities, review why less funding is available for infrastructure needs, and 
learn about the community’s interests and priorities to repair and upgrade various 
facilities. An informal survey tool was used to gather ideas and suggestions on how to 
prioritize funding and plan for the future of the City’s infrastructure. While 493 responses 
were received and the Council learned valuable information on infrastructure needs and 
priorities, the survey was not a scientifically valid survey tool. On January 27, 2015, the 
City Council directed staff to return to Council with a proposal to conduct a formal 
polling effort to gather more community input on specific funding options for 
infrastructure improvements. 
 
Staff issued a Request for Proposals and received two responses: 

 
• Godbe Research - $35,940 to survey 600 voters with a hybrid Internet/phone 

survey for 20 minutes, including conducting Internet and telephone surveys in 
Spanish; and 

• Fairbanks, Maslin, Maullin, Metz and Associates (FM3) - $28,150 to survey 500 
voters with an 18-20 minute survey with Spanish survey work at an additional 
cost.  

 



Council Agenda Report 
Professional Services Agreement with Godbe Research  
March 3, 2015 
Page 2 

 

The Infrastructure Council Committee met on February 19, 2015 to review the proposals 
and found both firms to have similar qualifications and level of experience conducting 
community polls. Both firms are able to complete the poll and present results to Council 
by the end of April.  

  
After reviewing the proposals, the Committee recommended moving forward with 
Godbe Research to conduct the survey over the phone and via the Internet to ensure 
the voter survey has the broadest participation possible from the Santa Barbara 
community in terms of voter demographics and geography.  
 
Staff recommends that Infrastructure Council Committee continue their role in the public 
outreach efforts and work with staff and the consultant to develop the polling questions 
and methodology. Polling efforts are anticipated to occur from mid-March through early 
April with a presentation of findings to Council on April 28, 2015. 
 
There are sufficient appropriated funds in the City Administrator’s Office budget to cover 
the cost of this contract, which is not anticipated to exceed $36,000.  
 
PREPARED BY: Nina Johnson, Assistant to the City Administrator 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Paul Casey, City Administrator 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



Agenda Item No.  7 
File Code No. 140.05  

 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: March 3, 2015 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: City Clerk’s Office, Administrative Services Department 
 
SUBJECT: Interview And Possible Appointment For Vacancy On Single Family 

Design Board 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council hold an interview, and possibly appoint, the applicant for the unscheduled 
vacancy on the Single Family Design Board. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
On December 8, 2014, notice was given of an unscheduled vacancy that had occurred 
on the City’s Single Family Design Board (SFDB).  On January 13, 2015, notice was 
given to Council of the unscheduled vacancy and a special vacancy notice was posted 
as per guidelines of Government Code Section 54974 (Maddy Act).  On January 27, 
2015, Council heard a report from staff outlining options for filling the unscheduled 
vacancy and on February 3, 2015, Council found that an emergency existed for the 
SFDB and appointed Paul Zink on an interim basis until Council completed the special 
recruitment scheduled and made a final appointment to this Board.   
 
Notice of special recruitment was posted on the City website, City T.V., the City News in 
Brief, Nextdoor.com, and Twitter and featured twice in the Santa Barbara Chapter of the 
American Institute of Architects Newsletter. 
 
For the current vacancy, three individuals submitted applications.  Due to the residency 
and licensed architect requirements, one applicant was eligible for this position.  His 
application and pertinent information will be distributed to the City Council and is available 
for review in the City Clerk’s Office.  The applicant has been notified that to be considered 
for appointment he must be interviewed.  He has been requested to prepare a 2-3 minute 
verbal presentation, in response to a set of questions specific to the Single Family Design 
Board for which he applying. 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Interview And Possible Appointment For Vacancy On Single Family Design Board 
March 3, 2015 
Page 2 

 

Due to the fact that there is only one eligible applicant, staff is recommending that the 
recruitment be concluded at this time rather than waiting until the originally scheduled 
appointment date of March 17, 2015. 
 
A copy of the application is available for review in the City Clerk’s Office. 
 
 
PREPARED BY: Deborah L. Applegate, Deputy City Clerk 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Kristine Schmidt, Administrative Services Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator's Office 
 



Agenda Item No.  8 
 

File Code No.  230.04 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE:  March 3, 2015 
 
TO:    Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM:   Accounting Division, Finance Department 
 
SUBJECT:  Fiscal Year 2015 Mid-Year Review 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  That Council:   
 
A. Hear a report from staff on the status of revenues and expenditures in relation to 

budget for the six months ended December 31, 2014;  
 
B. Accept the Fiscal Year 2015 Interim Financial Statements for the Six Months 

Ended December 31, 2014; and 
 
C. Approve the proposed mid-year adjustments to Fiscal Year 2015 appropriations 

and estimated revenues as detailed in the attached schedule of Proposed Mid-
Year Adjustments. 

 
DISCUSSION:   
 
Each month, staff presents the interim financial statements (Attachment 1) showing the 
status of revenues and expenditures in relation to budget for each of the City’s Funds. 
Each quarter, the interim financial statements are expanded to include a detailed 
narrative analysis of the General Fund and Enterprise Funds. This narrative analysis is 
included in Attachment 2.  
 
In addition to the mid-year budget analysis, staff brings forward recommended 
adjustments for City Council approval. These adjustments are the result of new 
information and/or unanticipated events that occurred since the adoption of the budget 
in June 2014.  A listing and description of each proposed adjustment to the current year 
budget is provided in Attachment 3.   
 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Fiscal Year 2015 Mid-Year Review 
March 3, 2015 
Page 2 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Summary by Fund Statement of Revenues and 
Expenditures for the Six Months Ended December 31, 
2014 

 2. Interim Financial Statements for the Six Months Ended 
December 31, 2014 (Narrative Analysis) 

 3. Schedule of Proposed Mid-Year Adjustments 
 
PREPARED BY: Julie Nemes, Accounting Manager 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Robert Samario, Acting Assistant City Administrator 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator's Office 
 
 



ATTACHMENT 1









































Fiscal Year 2015 Interim Financial Statements 

For the Six Months Ended December 31, 2014 (50% of Year Elapsed) 

 

1 

3-Year Variance
YTD Average Prior Yr

Annual YTD YTD YTD Percent Bench- Prior Year To
Budget Budget * Actual Variance Rec'd mark YTD Actual

Sales & Use Tax 21,726,115$   8,264,614$       8,475,993$       211,379$      39.01% 38.04% 7,873,848$       7.6%
Property Tax 27,164,000      9,618,772         9,873,692         254,920        36.35% 35.41% 9,405,586         5.0%
UUT 7,257,800        3,675,350         3,567,847         (107,503)       49.16% 50.64% 3,548,584         0.5%
TOT 17,641,400      10,239,069       10,832,023       592,954        61.40% 58.04% 9,490,697         14.1%
Bus License 2,571,200        991,198             1,099,330         108,132        42.76% 38.55% 1,069,479         2.8%
Prop Trans Tax 678,000           306,456             276,089             (30,367)         40.72% 45.20% 336,468             -17.9%
    Total Taxes 77,038,515      33,095,459       34,124,974       1,029,515     44.30% 42.59% 31,724,662       7.6%

License & Permits 233,500           116,750             95,441               (21,309)         40.87% 50.00% 95,729               -0.3%
Fines & Forfeitures 3,207,487        1,603,744         1,608,075         4,332             50.14% 50.00% 1,594,496         0.9%
Franchise Fee 3,771,000        1,870,416         1,905,522         35,106          50.53% 49.60% 1,855,070         2.7%
Use of Money & Property 1,026,021        513,011             457,522             (55,489)         44.59% 50.00% 457,848             -0.1%
Intergovernmental 742,517           371,259             280,897             (90,362)         37.83% 50.00% 1,048,947         -73.2%
Fee & Charges 20,425,632      10,212,816       10,060,339       (152,477)       49.25% 50.00% 9,545,507         5.4%
Miscellaneous 9,354,942        4,677,471         4,809,094         131,623        51.41% 50.00% 4,736,194         1.5%
    Total Other 38,761,099      19,365,466       19,216,890       (148,576)       49.58% 49.92% 19,333,791       -0.6%

Total Before Budgeted 
Variances 115,799,614   52,460,924       53,341,863       880,940        51,058,453       

Anticipated Year-End Var 1,200,000        600,000             -                          (600,000)       0.00% 50.00% -                          0.0%

Total Revenues 116,999,614$ 53,060,924$     53,341,863$     280,940$      45.59% 45.06% 51,058,453$     4.5%

* YTD Budget for Taxes is calculated based on a 3-year average of collections for each revenue source; for all other revenues, YTD Budget is calculated on a
  straight-line basis based on the number of months elapsed.

Summary of Revenues
For the Six Months Ended December 31, 2014

GENERAL FUND

Current Year Analysis Prior Year Analysis

Current Yr

General Fund Revenues 

The table below summarizes General Fund revenues for the six months ended December 31, 
2014. For interim financial statement purposes, revenues are reported on a cash basis (i.e. 
when the funds are received).  The table below includes the budgeted totals as well as the year-
to-date (YTD) budget, which for tax revenues and franchise fees have been seasonally adjusted 
based on a 3-year average of collections through the same period. Because tax revenues are 
not collected evenly throughout the year, adjusting the year-to-date budget to reflect the unique 
collection pattern for each type of tax allows for a more meaningful comparison to year-to-date 
results. For all other revenues, the Year-to-Date Budget column represents 50% (6 months out 
of the 12 elapsed) of the annual budget column. Unlike tax revenues, these revenues tend to be 
collected more evenly throughout the year. 

 

The table above summarizes General Fund revenues for the six months ended December 31, 
2014. For interim financial statement purposes, revenues are reported on a cash basis (i.e. 
when the funds are received).  Total revenues are $280,940 above the budget through 
December 31, 2014; however, total revenues collected before budgeted variances were 
$880,940 over YTD budget.  Major revenues and significant variances are discussed below.  

 

ATTACHMENT 2 



Fiscal Year 2015 Interim Financial Statements 

For the Six Months Ended December 31, 2014 (50% of Year Elapsed) 

 

2 

Sales Taxes 

Sales tax revenue for the first six months of the fiscal year was $211,379 above the YTD budget 
on a cash basis. However, while representing two quarterly sales tax payments year-to-date, 
the revenues received through December 31, 2014 provide information for the growth in sales 
tax revenues earned for the quarter ended September 30, 2014, which were 6.9% over those 
from the prior year. Sales tax revenues continue to show recovery from growth lost during the 
recession. Staff projects sales tax revenues to be above the original budget of $21.3 million by 
approximately $672,000.  

Property Tax 
 
Property tax revenue was $254,920 above the YTD budget at December 31, 2014. Revenue 
growth for Fiscal Year 2014 is trending higher than expected based on information provided by 
the County of Santa Barbara relative to increases in assessed values which were just over 5% 
per county records.  Property tax revenues are projected to exceed the adopted budget by 
approximately $505,000 at year-end.  

 
Transient Occupancy Tax 

TOT revenue was $592,954 above the YTD budget at December 31, as shown on the table on 
the previous page.  It is 14% higher than the same six-month period in the prior year.  Based on 
current projections, revenues are expected to be more than $839,000 above budget at year-
end.  

Business License Tax 

Business License revenue is $108,132 above the year-to-date budget, which also represents a 
2.8% increase over the prior year.  Based on current projections, however, business license 
revenues are projected to be about even with budget at year-end.  

Utility Users Tax 

Utility Users Tax revenues are $107,503 below the year-to-date budget.  These returns, 
however, do represent a 0.5% increase over the same six-month period last year. The two main 
drivers of this slow growth is the increasing segmentation in the telephony market (which 
pushes down overall traditional landline telephone and cellular telephone service) and the 
collapse in world oil prices (which reduces the price and demand for natural gas).  Based on our 
current projections, revenues are expected to be more than $239,000 below budget at year-end. 

Intergovernmental 

Intergovernmental revenue was approximately $90,362 below the YTD Budget. The largest 
component of intergovernmental revenue is mutual aid reimbursements received by the Fire 
Department for providing assistance to other agencies. The City is reimbursed for the actual 
costs of providing assistance plus an overhead factor.  The Fire Department budgeted $423,000 
in reimbursements and has received $124,898 in reimbursements as of December 31.  Fire 
Department staff are projecting to meet the budget by year-end.  



Fiscal Year 2015 Interim Financial Statements 

For the Six Months Ended December 31, 2014 (50% of Year Elapsed) 

 

3 

 
Miscellaneous 

Total Miscellaneous revenue is $131,623 above the year-to-date budget primarily due to 
unanticipated revenues from litigation settlements.  The table below describes the largest 
components of miscellaneous revenue, which includes overhead cost recovery, transfers in, 
donations, administrative citations, auction revenue, City TV revenue, sale of property, 
insurance rebates, refunds, and other miscellaneous revenue. 
 
Operating-Transfers In is $93,350 below the year-to-date budget.  The variance is due to a 
delay by the County in remitting traffic citation revenue to the City, thereby impacting total 
transfers in to the General Fund through December 31.  Staff anticipates this revenue to be at 
budget by year-end.  

 
Fees & Service Charges 
 
Overall, fees and service charges are $152,477 below the YTD budget. The table below 
provides more details on fees and service charges by department.  The more significant mid-
year variances are also discussed. 
 
Community Development fees are approximately $74,400 below the year-to-date budget.  This 
variance is mostly due to a slow start in building-related activity charges, such as planning work 
orders and building permit fees.  However, these revenues are expected to trend upward for the 
remainder of the year, and in the case of building permits are projected to be over budget by 
$67,000.   
    
Parks & Recreation fees are approximately $199,500 below the year-to-date budget.  Most of 
the increase will be realized later in the year, as parks & recreation programs tend to get higher 
participation in the summer.  However, staff projects there will be an overall shortfall of about 
$21,000 mostly due to lower participation in the Active Adults Program, including decreased 
Arts and Crafts Show membership and dance class attendance.  
 
Public Safety fees are approximately $52,900 below the year-to-date budget.  Most of the 
variance is due to dismissal fees in the Police Department, largely as a result of temporary 
decreased staffing in the parking citation section.  False alarm billing revenues are also lower 

Miscellaneous Revenue
General Fund

For the Six Months Ended December 31, 2014

Percent
Annual YTD YTD Budget Received Prior Year Prior Year Percent

Type of Misc. Revenue Budget Budget Actual Variance YTD YTD Variance Variance

Miscellaneous 1,660,410        830,205$         1,055,177       224,972$        63.5% 921,192          133,985$       14.5%
Indirect Allocations 6,411,155        3,205,578        3,205,578       -                 50.0% 3,146,370       59,208           1.9%
Operating-Transfers In 1,283,377        641,689           548,339          (93,350)           42.7% 668,632          (120,293)        -18.0%

Total 9,354,942$      4,677,472$       4,809,094$     131,623$        51.4% 4,736,194$     72,900$         1.5%



Fiscal Year 2015 Interim Financial Statements 

For the Six Months Ended December 31, 2014 (50% of Year Elapsed) 

 

4 

than projected, but are expected to increase in the latter part of the year as businesses exceed 
the free false alarm threshold.  
 
Public Works fees are approximately $83,200 below the year-to-date budget.  The variance is 
due to engineering work order revenue being down at mid-year, which is expected to be under 
budget by year-end.   
 
Reimbursement revenues are approximately $255,714 above the YTD budget.  The variance is 
mostly due to revenues of approximately $147,000 remitted by the State in the current year for 
SB90 mandated cost reimbursements from fiscal years 1995 through 1998.   
 

 
Anticipated Year-End Variances and Budgeted Savings from Concessions 
 
It is important to note that the table on page 1 includes $1,200,000 for anticipated year-end 
budget variances.  The $1.2 million is roughly equal to 1.0% of budgeted operating expenditures 
in the General Fund and, although budgeted as revenue, represents staff’s estimate of the 
favorable expenditure variances (i.e. expenditures under budget) for the year. As is the case 
each year, the Anticipated Year-End Variance budgeted will not reflect any actual revenues, but 
rather favorable variances in expenditures by year-end.  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Fees and Service Charges
General Fund

For the Six Months Ended December 31, 2014

Percent
Annual YTD YTD Budget Received Prior Year Prior Year Percent

Department Budget Budget Actual Variance YTD YTD Variance Variance

Finance 949,905$        474,953$        476,494$        1,542$           50.16% 461,281$      15,213$        3.3%
Community Development 4,587,515       2,293,758       2,219,425       (74,333)          48.38% 2,168,681     50,744          2.3%
Parks & Recreation 3,049,474       1,524,737       1,325,222       (199,515)        43.46% 1,305,375     19,847          1.5%
Public Safety 653,827          326,914          274,008          (52,906)          41.91% 246,664        27,344          11.1%
Public Works 5,951,301       2,975,651       2,892,517       (83,134)          48.60% 2,807,211     85,306          3.0%
Library 762,398          381,199          381,352          153               50.02% 363,832        17,520          4.8%
Reimbursements 4,471,212       2,235,606       2,491,320       255,714         55.72% 2,192,463     298,857        13.6%

Total 20,425,632$    10,212,816$    10,060,339$    (152,477)$      49.25% 9,545,507$   514,831$      5.4%



Fiscal Year 2015 Interim Financial Statements 

For the Six Months Ended December 31, 2014 (50% of Year Elapsed) 

 

5 

General Fund Expenditures 

The table below summarizes the General Fund budget and year-to-date expenditures through 
December 31, 2014.  The “Adjusted Annual Budget” column represents the adopted budget, 
appropriation carryovers from the prior year, and any supplemental appropriations approved by 
Council in the current year. 

As shown above, a year-to-date budget (labeled “YTD Budget”) column is included.  This 
column has been developed based on a 3-year average of expenditures in order to adjust for 
the seasonal nature of certain expenditures, such as debt service and summer recreation 
programs.  The table includes actual expenditures without encumbrances, and separate column 
for the variance after considering encumbrances.  Inclusion of encumbrances can significantly 
distort the analysis of budgeted and actual expenditures during the year.  Outstanding 
encumbrances include certain appropriations that were carried forward from prior year and 
contracts or blanket purchase orders that have been executed in the current year but are 
expected to be used throughout the year.  The following discussion and analysis does not 
include the impact of encumbrances.  

The year-to-date budget of $59.7 million at December 31, compared to actual expenditures of 
$57.9 million, resulted in a favorable variance of approximately $1.8 million.  Significant 
variances in departments are discussed below.   

Mayor and Council expenditures are over the YTD budget by approximately $311,000.  The 
variance is mostly due to a timing difference in payments of approximately $345,000 per quarter 
for the annual contract with Visit Santa Barbara to promote the City as a tourist destination and 
location for film production.  In the prior year, the third quarter payment was made in January; 
however, for Fiscal Year 2015, this payment was made in December 2014 thereby reporting 
75% of contract expenditures by mid-year.  Staff anticipates expenditures to be within budget at 
year-end.  

YTD
Adjusted Variance
Annual YTD YTD Without Encum-

Department Budget Budget Actual Encumbrance brance $ %

Mayor & Council 3,408,507$         1,954,097$       2,265,066$      (310,969)$        274,273$       (585,242)$        -17.2%
City Attorney 2,303,695           1,177,764         1,144,286        33,478              23,918           9,560                0.4%
City Administrator 2,284,173           1,146,084         989,816           156,268            79,277           76,991              3.4%
Administrative Svs. 2,037,450           1,024,939         892,856           132,083            39,810           92,273              4.5%
Finance 5,129,491           2,486,162         2,394,964        91,198              295,654         (204,456)          -4.0%
Police 38,222,049         19,206,580       18,950,562      256,018            338,382         (82,364)            -0.2%
Fire 22,988,643         11,573,173       11,873,972      (300,799)          48,946           (349,745)          -1.5%
Public Works 7,898,371           3,815,150         3,496,851        318,299            355,544         (37,245)            -0.5%
Parks & Recreation 15,780,292         8,016,388         7,414,727        601,661            269,850         331,811            2.1%
Library 5,028,385           2,396,327         2,442,094        (45,767)            39,838           (85,605)            -1.7%
Community Development 10,024,563         5,282,343         4,758,009        524,334            521,202         3,132                0.0%
Non-Departmental 2,610,877           1,600,990         1,278,198        322,792            660                322,132            12.3%
    Total 117,716,496$     59,679,997$     57,901,401$    1,778,596$       2,287,354$    (508,758)$        -0.4%

% of annual budget 50.7% 49.2% 1.5% 1.9% -0.4%

Favorable
(Unfavorable)

Variance With Encumb

SUMMARY OF EXPENDITURES
GENERAL FUND

For the Six Months Ended December 31, 2014
YTD



Fiscal Year 2015 Interim Financial Statements 

For the Six Months Ended December 31, 2014 (50% of Year Elapsed) 

 

6 

Fire Department expenditures are over the YTD budget by approximately $301,000.  This 
variance is due to higher than anticipated mutual aid expenditures during the first six months of 
Fiscal Year 2015.  Mutual aid expenditures relate to the cost of providing assistance to other 
locations throughout the state.  As of December 31, mutual aid expenditures amounted to 
$512,000 in comparison to budgeted mutual aid expenditures of $351,300.  However, the Fire 
Department has received about $125,000 in mutual aid reimbursement revenues as of 
December 31, and anticipates an additional amount of $437,000 that has already been billed 
but not yet received.  Mutual aid revenues are projected to exceed expenditures by $50,000 for 
all mutual aid activities through December 31, 2014.  As there is the possibility of additional 
mutual aid activities by year-end, staff will be monitoring mutual aid revenues and expenditures 
and will request an adjustment at year-end to record the total revenues and appropriations for 
all fiscal year 2015 mutual aid activities. At this time, staff anticipates expenditures, excluding 
mutual aid, will be within budget by year-end. 

Parks and Recreation expenditures are below YTD budget by approximately $601,700.  The 
variance is mostly due to reduced salary and benefit costs as a result of vacant positions.  The 
department is actively recruiting new staff and anticipates that all vacant positions will be filled 
by April 2015; budget savings of $241,000 for the fiscal year are projected.  Budget savings of 
$145,000 are also expected from the Medians and Parkways program, as FY 2014 carryover 
funds were used for work performed in the current fiscal year.      

Library expenditures are over the YTD budget by approximately $45,800.  The variance is due 
to unanticipated supplies purchases for the Central Library reorganization on the main floor, and 
the purchase of new color photocopiers for the public and staff.  These costs will be offset by 
budget savings in personnel costs expected by year-end, and higher than projected Literacy 
Program revenues.          

Community Development expenditures are below YTD budget by approximately $524,400.  
This variance is largely attributed to salary savings resulting from position vacancies and hourly 
vacancies in Records, and approximately $74,000 in across-the-board savings in Supplies and 
Services.  

Non-Departmental expenditures are below YTD budget by approximately $322,800.  This 
variance is due to the programming of $406,300 of appropriated reserves to cover 
contingencies that arise during the course of the fiscal year. As of December 31, $70,200 
appropriated reserves have been used.  

  



Fiscal Year 2015 Interim Financial Statements 

For the Six Months Ended December 31, 2014 (50% of Year Elapsed) 

 

7 

Enterprise Fund Revenues and Expenses 

Unlike the General Fund, which relies primarily on taxes to subsidize programs and services, 
Enterprise Fund operations are financed primarily from user fees and other non-tax revenues. 
The table below summarizes Enterprise Fund revenues and expenses through December 31, 
2014, with a comparison to the current year budget and prior year expenses through the first six 
months.  Note that the “YTD Budget” column has been calculated based on a 3-year average 
collection rate through December 31st.  This rate, which is shown as a percentage in the “3 Year 
Average” column, has been applied to the annual budget amount to arrive at the Year-to-Date 
Budget.  This approach is used in recognition that enterprise fund revenues and certain 
expenses are seasonally affected and are not necessarily received or incurred evenly 
throughout the year.     

 

 
Annual YTD YTD YTD YTD 3 Year YTD %
Budget Budget * Actual Variance Percent Average Actual Variance

Solid Waste Fund

Revenues 20,645,776$      9,998,749$       10,209,649$    210,900$         49.5% 48.4% 10,355,759$    -1.4%

Expenses 20,613,368        9,853,190        9,722,718        130,472           47.2% 47.8% 9,753,683        -0.3%

Water Fund

Revenues 39,347,669        20,775,569       19,336,069      (1,439,500)       49.1% 52.8% 20,435,019      -5.4%

Expenses 47,698,870        24,073,620       21,863,189      2,210,431        45.8% 50.5% 19,605,326      11.5%

Wastewater Fund

Revenues 18,883,613        9,562,662        9,136,257        (426,405)          48.4% 50.6% 9,252,543        -1.3%

Expenses 20,036,066        9,206,572        8,607,076        599,496           43.0% 46.0% 7,658,834        12.4%

Downtown Parking Fund

Revenues 7,936,933          3,885,922        4,317,994        432,072           54.4% 49.0% 3,990,307        8.2%

Expenses 8,465,044          4,205,434        3,883,796        321,638           45.9% 49.7% 4,080,169        -4.8%

Airport Fund

Revenues 15,469,349        7,821,303        8,075,886        254,583           52.2% 50.6% 7,840,086        3.0%

Expenses 15,786,050        7,537,839        7,136,053        401,786           45.2% 47.8% 7,531,792        -5.3%

Golf Fund

Revenues 2,091,048          1,035,069        969,506          (65,563)            46.4% 49.5% 1,076,098        -9.9%

Expenses 2,080,245          1,101,698        1,072,524        29,174             51.6% 53.0% 1,117,059        -4.0%

Waterfront Fund

Revenues 12,661,137        6,571,130        8,084,941        1,513,811        63.9% 51.9% 7,181,596        12.6%

Expenses 13,695,537        7,112,092        6,755,784        356,308           49.3% 51.9% 6,793,581        -0.6%

* The YTD Budget column has been calculated based on a 3-year average of collections for revenues, and of payments made for expenses
through December 31, which has been applied to the annual budget.

SUMMARY OF REVENUES & EXPENSES
For The Six Months Ended December 31, 2014

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Current Year Analysis Prior Year Analysis



Fiscal Year 2015 Interim Financial Statements 

For the Six Months Ended December 31, 2014 (50% of Year Elapsed) 

 

8 

The expenses shown in the preceding table do not include outstanding encumbrances at 
December 31, 2014.  Inclusion of encumbrances can significantly distort the analysis of 
budgeted and actual expenditures after six months.  Outstanding encumbrances include 
appropriations that were carried forward from prior year as part of the appropriation carryovers 
and contracts or blanket purchase orders that have been added in the current year but are 
expected to be spent over the coming months.   

The following discussion highlights some of the more significant revenue and expense 
variances of the enterprise funds, in relation to budget or prior year. 

Solid Waste Fund 

Solid Waste Fund revenues are above the year-to-date budget as of December 31 by 
approximately $210,900 mostly due to the increase of solid waste rates.  Expenses for the Solid 
Waste Fund are slightly below the YTD budget by approximately $130,500.  The variance is 
largely attributed to a timing difference in the semi-annual payment of approximately $258,000 
for regional fees to the County of Santa Barbara for waste management services. The payment 
is typically made in January.  Staff anticipates expenditures will be within budget by year-end. 

Water Fund 

Water Fund revenues are below the year-to-date budget by approximately $1.4 million, primarily 
due to a water sales revenue shortfall of $1.2 million.  Budgeted water sales revenue assumed 
a 20% demand reduction; however during the first half of the fiscal year, customers achieved a 
23% reduction in water usage.  Conservation efforts have increased and customers are being 
conscientious due to the current drought situation.  This is favorable news for water supply, but 
has significantly impacted revenues.  Staff anticipates that total water sales for Fiscal Year 2015 
may be below budget by approximately $2.9 million.   

Since the beginning of the fiscal year, staff has identified five grant funding sources that will 
offset some of the revenue shortfall.  The City has been notified that all grants have been 
approved, none of which were budgeted.  Of these, three grants are under contract and will 
realize additional revenues of $800,000 and two other grants are still pending and award 
amounts are yet to be determined.   

Expenses for the Water Fund are below the YTD budget by approximately $2.2 million.  The 
variance is mostly due to only 34% of total debt service costs of over $5.1 million occurring in 
the first half of Fiscal Year 2015, as compared to approximately 48% in prior years.  In addition, 
water purchases are lower in the first six months than projected by approximately $780,000; 
however it is expected the water purchases budget will be spent during the remainder of the 
fiscal year.  Staff anticipates expenditures will be within budget by year-end.     

Wastewater Fund 

Wastewater Fund revenues are below the YTD budget approximately $426,400.  The shortfall is 
related to the 23% reduction in water usage, as a portion of sewer service charges are based on 
discharges to the sewer system as measured through water usage.  It is projected these 
revenues may be below budget by $600,000 at year-end.     



Fiscal Year 2015 Interim Financial Statements 

For the Six Months Ended December 31, 2014 (50% of Year Elapsed) 

 

9 

Wastewater Fund expenses are approximately $599,500 below the YTD budget.  This variance 
is due to a large number of vacant positions this fiscal year, which have resulted in significant 
savings in personnel costs.  Staff anticipates for positions to be filled within the next six months.   

Downtown Parking Fund 

Downtown Parking Fund revenues are above the YTD budget by approximately $432,100.  
Most of the variance is due to increased hourly parking and monthly parking revenues from an 
improved downtown economy and the use of credit cards in the lots.  In addition, beginning in 
August 2014, there was a fee increase in the Cota Commuter Lot that realized higher revenues.  
Expenses are below the YTD budget by approximately $321,600.  This variance is primarily due 
to lower facilities and equipment repair costs in the first half of the year.      

Airport Fund 

Airport Fund revenues are above the YTD budget at December 31 by approximately $254,600 
due to higher rental car and commercial aviation revenues.  The rental car companies had a 
change in pricing to attract more customers that contributed to the increase, and higher rentals 
by non-airport users were also noted.  As for commercial aviation revenues, airline terminal 
building rental and landing fees, as well as airfreight are 8.8% above budget.  Changes to the 
United aircraft fleet mix toward bigger planes significantly increased boarding bridge usage and 
landing weights, which positively impacted revenues.  An increase in freight and charter landing 
weights and fees also contributed to higher revenues.   

Expenses for the Airport Fund are below the YTD budget by approximately $401,800.  The 
variance is mostly due to position vacancies in the department, and the closure of Long-Term 
Lot 2 throughout the holiday period.  Approximately $63,000 of the variance is due to equipment 
purchases that will be expensed in the second half of the fiscal year.   

Golf Fund 

Golf Fund revenues are below the YTD budget by approximately $65,600.  The variance is 
mostly due to lower greens fee revenue; at mid-year, paid rounds are 6.4% below FY 2014 
performance and 7.4% below the FY 2015 budget.  Concession and range fee revenues are 
also down.  The drought measures and general condition of the range have impacted revenues, 
and it is anticipated that any additional significant reduction in water allowances may impact 
further the quality of the turf areas on the course, which may further impact revenue generation. 
Overall, it is expected that revenues will end the year approximately $96,000 under budget.  

Golf Fund expenses are below the YTD budget by approximately $29,200. Staff has been 
holding discretional spending and seeking ways to reduce costs given the challenges faced in 
improving revenues.  Cost savings are expected in salaries due to the retirement of a fulltime 
employee and the use of hourly staff to back fill the position.  In addition, water conservation 
efforts are expected to reduce costs by about $39,000.  Staff will be closely monitoring revenues 
and expenses over the next several months to determine the need to make any additional cost 
reductions to meet budget at year-end. 

 



Fiscal Year 2015 Interim Financial Statements 

For the Six Months Ended December 31, 2014 (50% of Year Elapsed) 

 

10 

Waterfront Fund 

Waterfront Fund revenues are above the YTD budget by approximately $1.5 million.  Good 
summer weather, and an unseasonably warm fall and winter season contributed to significant 
increases in revenues through December 31.  In particular, slip transfer fees are above  
projections, increasing about $287,000 or 84% from the prior year.  Leases with businesses on 
the wharf and harbor, and parking lots also realized higher revenues.   

Expenses for the Waterfront Fund are below the YTD budget by approximately $356,300.  This 
variance is primarily due to equipment and computer hardware that will be purchased later in 
the fiscal year, and the programming of $100,000 of appropriated reserves in the operating 
budget to cover contingencies that arise during the course of the fiscal year.  As of December 
31, no appropriated reserves have been used.  



ATTACHMENT 3
City of Santa Barbara

Interim Financial Statements for the Six Months Ended December 31, 2014
Proposed Budget Adjustments

Increase
Increase (Decrease) in Addition to

(Decrease) in Estimated (Use of)
Appropriations Revenues Reserves

GENERAL FUND (1000)

Arts and Community Promotions
Increase Appropriations for TV Santa Barbara PEG Fees 12,208$           (12,208)$         

In July 2014, City Council approved the Fiscal Year 2015 grant contract with TV Santa Barbara
(TVSB) for operational and capital funding. Included in the contract were $12,208 of PEG Fees for
capital expenditures representing 50% of additional actual PEG fees received by the City for the
fiscal year 2014. This recommended entry will increase appropriations in the arts and community
promotions budget for the additional PEG Fees due to TVSB per the contract.

Community Development
Increase Estimated Revenues for Additional Building & Safety Permit Revenues 67,000            67,000             
Increase Appropriations for Salaries & Benefits - One Full-Time Plans Examiner 67,000             (67,000)           

In the prior fiscal year, City Council appropriated funds for Building & Safety to hire one part-time
hourly Plans Examiner. As a result of the hiring, the division has processed 11% more
applications, trained staff and assisted customers with a new State Energy Code, and performed
more over-the-counter reviews. Due to the favorable results, staff is requesting one full-time
position of Plans Examiner in place of the part-time hourly position. Staff anticipates $67,000
more in building permit revenue in the fiscal year as a result of increased permit activity, which
staff projects are sufficient to cover the additional costs of the full-time position. These
recommended entries will increase estimated revenues and appropriations by $67,000.

Police
Increase Appropriations for Community Service Officers - Safety Presence Pilot Project 150,000           (150,000)         
Transfer Available Appropriations from the Downtown Parking Fund - Safety Presence Pilot Project 150,000          150,000           

On October 28, 2014, City Council voted for the Police Department to move forward with the
Community Service Officer option for enhancing the safety presence in the downtown corridor.
The Community Service Officers will be part of the Tactical Patrol Force Program and funding will
cover salaries and benefits as well as uniforms and office supplies for the project. The $150,000
funding for the safety presence pilot project was originally budgeted in the Downtown Parking
Fund for Fiscal Year 2015. These recommended entries will transfer the appropriations from the
Downtown Parking Fund to the Police Department in the General Fund. 

Library
Increase Estimated Revenues for Additional Literacy Program Funding 9,355              9,355               
Increase Appropriations for the Central Library Reorganization 9,355               (9,355)             

During Fiscal Year 2015, the Central Library Reorganization project has been in process on the 
main floor of the Library. As part of the project, the Library Department is projecting additional 
unbudgeted costs in special services supplies as well as costs for new color photocopiers. Staff is 
projecting sufficient costs savings in other areas to offset all but $9,355 of these unanticipated 
costs. These costs will be covered by anticipated additional revenues from the Literacy Program. 
These recommended entries will increase estimated revenues and appropriations by $9,355.

Total General Fund 238,563$         226,355$        (12,208)$         

1



Increase
Increase (Decrease) in Addition to

(Decrease) in Estimated (Use of)
Appropriations Revenues Reserves

CAPITAL OUTLAY FUND (3000)

Increase Appropriations for Davis Center and Westside Center Facility Improvement Project 50,000$           -$                (50,000)$         
Transfer Available Appropriations from Streets Capital Fund 50,000            50,000             

As part of the Fiscal Year 2015 budget, City Council appropriated $100,000 in General Fund
resources in the Streets Capital Fund for the design of future Community Development Block
Grant eligible projects. The funds were appropriated in a Streets Division account (Streets
Engineering) that is intended for miscellaneous streets related issues and is not typically used for
specific capital projects. In November 2015, the Neighborhood Advisory Council approved
$50,000 to be used to complete the design of the Euclid Avenue Sidewalks and $50,000 for the
design of facility safety and access improvements at the Louise Lowry Davis Center and the
Westside Community Center. These recommended entries will transfer the available
appropriations in the Streets Capital Fund to the new projects in the Streets Capital Fund and
Capital Outlay Fund.

Total Capital Outlay Fund 50,000$           50,000$          -$                

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Police Asset Forfeiture Fund (2310) 
Increase Appropriations for Air Quality Study from Asset Forfeiture Capital Improvement Reserve 20,000$           (20,000)$         

The Police Department used available appropriations in the General Fund in January 2015 for an 
unbudgeted Air Quality Study at the Police Department. These appropriations are needed for other 
projects in the Patrol Budget prior to June 30, 2015. This recommended entry will increase 
appropriations in the Asset Forfeiture Fund from the new Asset Forfeiture Capital Improvement 
Reserve by $20,000 to cover the cost for the study out of the Asset Forfeiture Fund rather than the 
General Fund.

Total Police Asset Forfeiture Fund 20,000$           -$                (20,000)$         

Miscellaneous Grants Fund (2800)
Increase Estimated Revenues - Domestic Violence Solutions -$                 5,800$            5,800$             
Increase Appropriations - Domestic Violence Solutions 5,800               (5,800)             

Since the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2015 budget, the Police Department received $5,800 from
Domestic Violence Solutions. These funds will be used to offset the cost of officer time spent
working with Domestic Violence Solutions in the creation of domestic violence protocols, training
and outreach materials. These recommended entries will increase estimated revenues and
appropriations by $5,800.  

Total Miscellaneous Grants Fund 5,800$             5,800$            -$                

County Library Fund (2500)
Increase Estimated Revenues from the Ariano Trust Gift Account -$                 4,600$            4,600$             
Increase Appropriations for the Goleta Library - Lobby Enhancements 4,600               (4,600)             

Subsequent to the development of the Library Department's Fiscal Year 2015 budget, the City of
Goleta requested an enhancement of the lobby at the Goleta Library. To fund project costs, a
transfer from the Ariano Trust of $4,600 is needed. These recommended entries will increase
estimated revenues and appropriations by $4,600.

Decrease Estimated Revenues - Donations from Friends of the Library (20,000)           (20,000)           
Decrease Appropriations for Materials - Solvang (20,000)            20,000             

In December 2014, the Library Department received notification from the Friends of the Santa
Ynez Valley Libraries of a reduction in their current year gift to the Solvang Library. The reduction
in revenues requires a corresponding reduction in materials appropriations. These recommended
entries will decrease estimated donations revenue and materials appropriations by $20,000.

Total County Library Fund (15,400)$          (15,400)$         -$                

2



Increase
Increase (Decrease) in Addition to

(Decrease) in Estimated (Use of)
Appropriations Revenues Reserves

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS (cont.)

Streets Capital Fund (3400)
Decrease Appropriations in Streets Engineering (100,000)$        -$                100,000$         
Transfer Available Appropriations to New Euclid Avenue Sidewalk Infill Project 50,000             -                  (50,000)           
Transfer Available Appropriations to Capital Outlay Fund - New Davis & Westside Centers Project 50,000             -                  (50,000)           

As part of the Fiscal Year 2015 budget, City Council appropriated $100,000 in General Fund
resources in the Streets Capital Fund for the design of future Community Development Block
Grant eligible projects. The funds were appropriated in a Streets Division account (Streets
Engineering) that is intended for miscellaneous streets related issues and is not typically used for
specific capital projects. In November 2015, the Neighborhood Advisory Council approved
$50,000 to be used to complete the design of the Euclid Avenue Sidewalks and $50,000 for the
design of facility safety and access improvements at the Louise Lowry Davis Center and the
Westside Community Center. These recommended entries will transfer the available
appropriations in the Streets Capital Fund to the new projects in the Streets Capital Fund and
Capital Outlay Fund.

Increase Appropriations for Pedestrian Refuge Island Project 16,422             -                  (16,422)           

As of December 31, 2014, Public Works staff have identified $16,422 of additional needs in the
Streets Capital Fund to cover final costs associated with the Pedestrian Refuge Island Project.
The project exceeded budget due to additional costs required for staff to perform construction
management. This recommended entry will increase appropriations from reserves to cover the
final costs of the project.

Increase Appropriations for Highway Safety Improvement Crosswalk Enhancement Project 50,000             -                  (50,000)           

As of December 31, 2014, Public Works staff have identified $50,000 of additional needs in the
Streets Capital Fund to cover additional costs associated with the Highway Safety Improvement
Crosswalk Enhancement Project. Additional funding is being required to complete the design
phase of the project due to higher than anticipated costs related to meeting Caltrans
environmental requirements, obtaining approval for the project and coordinating with the Cabrillo
Boulevard Bridge Replacement Project. This recommended entry will increase appropriations from
reserves to cover the additional design costs of the project.

Total Streets Capital Fund 66,422$           -$                (66,422)$         

Streets Grants Fund (3410)
Increase Estimated Revenues - Local Surface Transportation Program -$                 2,448$            2,448$             
Increase Appropriations - Local Surface Transportation Program 2,448               (2,448)             

Subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2015 budget, the Public Works Department
received notification that the City would be receiving an increase in its annual allocation for the
Local Surface Transportation Program of $2,448. These recommended entries increase estimated
revenues for the increase in the annual allocation and a corresponding increase in appropriations
for pavement work as part of the Local Surface Transportation Program.

Total Streets Grants Fund 2,448$             2,448$            -$                

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Water Operating Fund (5000)
Transfer Available Reserves from Water Capital Fund -$                 1,949,833$     1,949,833$      

The Water Capital Fund ended Fiscal Year 2014 with $1,949,833 of available reserves due to the
completion of projects under budget and the elimination or postponement of certain projects. This
recommended entry will transfer the available reserves in the Water Capital Fund to the Water
Operating Fund for future re-appropriation for drought related costs.

Total Water Operating Fund -$                 1,949,833$     1,949,833$      

3



Increase
Increase (Decrease) in Addition to

(Decrease) in Estimated (Use of)
Appropriations Revenues Reserves

ENTERPRISE FUNDS (cont.)

Water Capital Fund (5010)
Transfer Available Reserves to Water Operating Fund 1,949,833$      -$                (1,949,833)$    

The Water Capital Fund ended Fiscal Year 2014 with $1,949,833 of available reserves due to the
completion of projects under budget and the elimination or postponement of certain projects. This
recommended entry will transfer the available reserves in the Water Capital Fund to the Water
Operating Fund for future re-appropriation for drought related costs.

Total Water Capital Fund 1,949,833$      -$                (1,949,833)$    

Downtown Parking Fund (5300)
Decrease Appropriations in the Safety Presence Pilot Project (150,000)$        -$                150,000$         
Transfer Available Appropriations to the Police Department in the General Fund 150,000           -                  (150,000)         

On October 28, 2014, City Council voted for the Police Department to move forward with the
Community Service Officer option for enhancing the safety presence in the downtown corridor.
The Community Service Officers will be part of the Tactical Patrol Force Program and funding will
cover salaries and benefits as well as uniforms and office supplies for the project. The $150,000
funding for the safety presence pilot project was originally budgeted in the Downtown Parking
Fund for Fiscal Year 2015. These recommended entries will transfer the appropriations from the
Downtown Parking Fund to the Police Department in the General Fund. 

Total Downtown Parking Fund -$                 -$                -$                

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

Facilities Management Fund (6300)
Transfer Funds to the Facilities Capital Fund for the FY15 Budgeted Projects 1,267,070$      -$                (1,267,070)$    

As part of the annual budget process, staff proposes the transfer of funds from the Facilities
Management Fund to the Facilities Capital Fund to cover the cost of any planned capital projects
in excess of estimated revenues. This recommended entry is a technical correction to transfer
$1,267,070 from the Facilities Management Fund to cover the deficit in the Facilities Capital Fund.

Total Facilities Management Fund 1,267,070$      -$                (1,267,070)$    

Facilities Capital Fund (6310)
Transfer Funds from the Facilities Management Fund for FY15 Budgeted Projects -$                 1,267,070$     1,267,070$      

As part of the annual budget process, staff proposes the transfer of funds from the Facilities
Management Fund to the Facilities Capital Fund to cover the cost of planned capital projects in
excess of estimated revenues. This recommended entry is a technical correction to transfer
$1,267,070 from the Facilities Management Fund to the Facilities Capital Fund as this transfer
was not requested for the fiscal year 2015 budget. 

Facilities Capital Fund (6310) (cont.)
Adjust Capital Project Budgets:

Decrease Appropriations - Police Department HVAC Replacement Project (371,220)          -                  371,220           
Decrease Appropriations - Central Library Gutter / Eave Repair Project (75,000)            -                  75,000             
Decrease Appropriations - Corp Yard Paving Repair Project (71,000)            -                  71,000             
Increase Appropriations - Police Carpet and Paint Project 35,000             -                  (35,000)           
Increase Appropriations - Miscellaneous Staff Projects 99,980             -                  (99,980)           
Increase Appropriations - Pershing Park Ballfield Project 86,550             -                  (86,550)           
Increase Appropriations - Miscellaneous Facilities Renewal Projects 131,976           -                  (131,976)         
Increase Appropriations - Laguna Lot Permeable Paving Project 163,714           -                  (163,714)         

Since the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2015 budget, the Public Works Department has identified
additional funding needs for various facilities projects, such as the Pershing Park Ballfield, the
required City match for the Laguna Lot Permeable Paving Project, miscellaneous staff projects,
and miscellaneous facilities renewal projects. Staff have identified project savings in the Facilities
Capital Fund, primarily in the Police Department HVAC Project, the Central Library Gutter Repair
Project and the Corp Yard Paving Repair Project, to cover all of these additional funding needs.
These recommended entries will transfer available appropriations from projects expected to be
completed under budget, reduced in scope or deferred to the future to the projects requiring
additional funding.

Total Facilities Capital Fund -$                 1,267,070$     1,267,070$      
4



Agenda Item No.  9 
 

File Code No.  230.01 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 
 
 

 
AGENDA DATE: March 3, 2015 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Engineering Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT: Capital Improvement Projects:  Second Quarter Report For Fiscal 

Year 2015 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That Council receive the City’s Capital Improvement Projects Second Quarter Report for 
Fiscal Year 2015. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
 
A presentation will be made to Council summarizing the progress made on City Capital 
Improvement Projects in the second quarter of Fiscal Year 2015.  The value of projects 
with construction in progress totals $57,961,249, and the value of projects in the design 
phase totals $99,488,448. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The following discussion highlights the construction activity during the second quarter of 
Fiscal Year 2015. 
 
CONSTRUCTION HIGHLIGHTS – COMPLETED PROJECTS 
 
Seven projects were completed in the second quarter of Fiscal Year 2015, from October 
through December 2014.  Attachment 1 is a chart that shows the completed capital 
projects for the second quarter.  Attachments 2 and 3 display the completed capital 
projects by fund for Fiscal Year 2015.  The following describes the highlights of four 
completed construction projects: 
 

• School Zone Pedestrian Refuge Island ($191,003) – The completed project 
consisted of installing 15 low profile, mountable pedestrian refuge islands at nine 
intersections. These intersections included the following: Soledad Street at 
Yanonali Street; Soledad Street at East Mason Street; Soledad Street at 
Quinientos Street; Soledad Street at Carpinteria Avenue; Voluntario Street at 
East Mason Street; Voluntario Street at Quinientos Street; Modoc Road at 



Council Agenda Report 
Capital Improvement Projects:  Second Quarter Report For Fiscal Year 2015 
March 3, 2015 
Page 2 
 

 

Portesuello Avenue; Modoc Road at Pilgrim Terrace; and Portesuello Avenue at 
Gillespie Street. 

 
• Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 2013-2014 Sidewalk Access 

Ramp Project ($202,924) – The work consisted of constructing 15 new sidewalk 
access ramps at 10 intersections throughout the City, within the eligible CDBG 
census tracts.  These intersections included the following: Corona del Mar Drive 
at Orilla del Mar Drive; Ninos Drive at Por la Mar Drive; Canon Perdido Street at 
Nopal Street; Nopal Street between Canon Perdido Street and De la Guerra 
Street; Quarantina Street between Canon Perdido Street and De la Guerra 
Street; De la Guerra Street at Salsipuedes Street; Bath Street at Sola Street; and 
La Cadena Street at Quinientos Street. 

 
• Water Main Rehabilitation Fiscal Year 2013 ($4,228,704) – This project installed 

and replaced approximately 20,700 feet of potable water main at various 
locations throughout the City.  This is consistent with the City’s goal to replace 
approximately 1 percent of the City’s water distribution piping system on an 
annual basis.  The annual Water Main Replacement Program has been deferred, 
and funding has been reprogrammed to the Water Drought Fund. 

 
• Valle Verde Well Upgrade ($167,317) – This project adds a water source to the 

reclaimed water system.  The City expects to produce 200 gallons per minute 
(gpm) from the well to add into the reclaimed water system.  While the reclaimed 
water treatment plant is under construction, the 200 gpm produced by the well 
will save 200 gpm of potable water. 

 
CONSTRUCTION HIGHLIGHTS – IN PROGRESS 
 
In addition, 22 projects are currently under construction, with an approximate 
construction contract value of $57,961,249 (Attachment 4).  The Interactive Map of 
Design and Construction Projects can be viewed at the following link: 
www.santabarbaraca.gov/gov/depts/pw/engineering/major_projects.  The following are 
highlights of construction projects in progress: 
 
Public Works Bridges: 

• Punta Gorda Bridge at Sycamore Creek ($2,212,565) – Construction of utilities 
and roadway improvements has recently been completed.  The project is 
scheduled to be complete, and Punta Gorda Street re-opened, in March 2015. 

 
• Mason Street Bridge at Mission Creek ($7,280,709) – Building demolition and 

underground work necessary to realign Kimberly Avenue has been completed.  
Pile wall construction is underway for widening Mission Creek as part of this 
project.  The project is scheduled to be complete in summer 2016. 

http://www.santabarbaraca.gov/gov/depts/pw/engineering/major_projects.asp


Council Agenda Report 
Capital Improvement Projects:  Second Quarter Report For Fiscal Year 2015 
March 3, 2015 
Page 3 
 

 

 
• Cabrillo Boulevard Bridge at Mission Creek ($13,989,151) – Stage One of 

construction was recently completed.  The work included partial demolition of an 
adjacent building and utility relocation in the park.  Stage Two of construction, 
which includes replacing the north half of the bridge, has recently started and will 
continue for the remainder of 2015.  The project is scheduled to be complete by 
the end of 2016. 

 
• Cota Street Bridge at Mission Creek ($4,956,146) – Construction of this project is 

scheduled to start later this month with roadway preparations, before entering the 
creek this summer to replace the bridge.  The project is scheduled to be 
complete in early 2016. 

 
Airport: 

• Runway 15L-33R Pavement Rehabilitation ($2,698,685) – Approximately 10,000 
square feet of aircraft parking apron has been reconstructed in the north General 
Aviation Ramp.  Additional work included pavement rehabilitation consisting of 
crack seal, slurry seal, new paint markings, and approximately 600 feet of 
transverse joint cracks which occur near the south General Aviation Ramp.  The 
project is scheduled to be complete in spring 2015. 

 
Successor Agency to the Redevelopment Agency of the City of Santa Barbara: 

• Lower West Downtown Lighting Improvement Project, Phase 2 ($463,558) – The 
construction contract was awarded on January 13, 2015.  Work is scheduled to 
start in mid-March.  The project is scheduled to be complete in summer 2015. 

 
Public Works Pedestrian Access Improvements: 

• Voluntario Street Sidewalk Access Ramps (CDBG 2015) ($231,979) – The 
construction contract was awarded on December 16, 2014.  The construction is 
scheduled to start in early March 2015. 

 
Public Works Wastewater Maintenance: 

• On-Call Sewer Main Point Repairs Fiscal Year 2015 ($262,285) – Work on this 
project began in September 2014, and is progressing smoothly at various 
locations throughout the City.  This project entails open-trench excavation of 6-
inch and 8-inch sewer pipes for rehabilitation.  The project is scheduled to be 
complete in spring 2015. 

 
Waterfront: 

• Marina One-Phase 5 ($6,851,250) – The Marina One improvements were broken 
up into 8 phases that were to be completed over a 9-year period.  In 2012, 
phases 1-4 were completed.  This project will complete the remaining phases 5-
8.  Demolition is completed, and new floats have arrived for installation for Phase 
5.  The project is scheduled to be complete in spring 2015. 



Council Agenda Report 
Capital Improvement Projects:  Second Quarter Report For Fiscal Year 2015 
March 3, 2015 
Page 4 
 

 

PROJECTS IN DEVELOPMENT 
 
In addition to the projects in construction, there are currently 46 projects in design, with 
an estimated total project cost of $99,488,448 (see Attachment 4).  At this time, the 
Desalination Project is not included. 
 
Projects are scheduled to be funded over several years, as generally shown in the 
City’s Six-Year Capital Improvement Program Report.  These projects rely on 
guaranteed or anticipated funding and grants. 
 
The following are design project highlights. 
 
Public Works Bridges: 
There are currently four bridge replacement projects and one bridge preventative 
maintenance project, worth an estimated $24 million in design, as part of the City 
Federal Grant-funded Highway Bridge Program. 
 
Design in Progress: 

• De La Guerra Bridge at Mission Creek ($6,235,000) – The grant funding for this 
project is 88.53 percent, with a City match of 11.47 percent.  Construction is 
scheduled to start in spring 2016. 

 
• Gutierrez Bridge at Mission Creek ($6,665,750) – The grant funding for this 

project is 88.53 percent, with a City match of 11.47 percent.  Construction is 
scheduled to start in spring 2016. 

 
• Anapamu Bridge at Mission Creek ($5,415,000) – This bridge project is 100 

percent grant funded.  Construction is scheduled to start in spring 2017. 
 

• Quinientos Bridge at Sycamore Creek ($5,622,500) – This bridge project is 100 
percent grant funded.  Construction is scheduled to start in spring 2017. 

 
Public Works Pedestrian Access Improvements: 

• Active Transportation Program (ATP) Montecito Street Bridge Replacement and 
Pedestrian Improvements ($3,875,000) – This project will replace the Montecito-
Yanonali Street Bridge, adding a sidewalk and wider shoulders for bicyclists, and 
filling in a missing link of sidewalk on Salinas Street, from Mason Street to Clifton 
Street.  The contract for design was awarded on February 3, 2015. 

 
• ATP Cacique and Soledad Pedestrian/Bicycle Bridges and Corridor 

Improvements ($3,703,000) – The design contract was awarded in February 
2015.  Preliminary design and environmental phases are underway. 

 
• ATP Las Positas Road Multi-use Path ($1,550,000) – The project will construct a 

separated pathway for bicyclists, runners, and pedestrians of all ages and 
abilities along Las Positas and Modoc Roads.  The project begins on Modoc 



Council Agenda Report 
Capital Improvement Projects:  Second Quarter Report For Fiscal Year 2015 
March 3, 2015 
Page 5 
 

 

Road at the City Limits, continuing east to the intersection of Las Positas Road 
and south along Las Positas Road to Cliff Drive.  The City received ATP grant 
funds for the design and environmental phases of the project, which are 
anticipated to be completed by fall 2016.  Construction is expected to be funded 
through future grant opportunities and will likely be a phased effort. 

 
• ATP Lower Milpas Pedestrian Improvements ($1,097,000) – This project is in 

preliminary design, with multiple design alternatives being considered. 
 

• La Cumbre Road Sidewalk Infill Project ($417,900) – This project will construct 
new sidewalk, access ramps, and enhanced pedestrian crossings along La 
Cumbre Road from Via Lucero to La Cumbre Hills Lane and is primarily funded 
by Measure A funds.  The project is currently in preliminary design, with 
construction anticipated in late 2016/early 2017. 

 
Public Works Wastewater Maintenance: 

• Fats, Oil, Grease (FOG) Scrubber Project ($167,794) – The final design for the 
replacement of the Odor Control System for the FOG receiving tank was 
completed in early October 2014.  The City is waiting on permits, with 
construction scheduled for spring 2015. 

 
SUMMARY: 
 
The second quarter of Fiscal Year 2015 ended with approximately $5.5 million in 
completed construction.  Approximately $251,528 was provided through grant funding. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 1. Completed Capital Improvement Projects for Fiscal Year 2015 

2. Completed Capital Improvement Projects Funding Fiscal Year 
2015 - Table 

3. Completed Capital Improvement Projects Funding by 
Category Fiscal Year 2015 - Chart 

4. Capital Projects with Design and Construction in Progress 
 
PREPARED BY: Pat Kelly, Assistant Public Works Director/City Engineer/TB 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Rebecca J. Bjork, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator’s Office 
 
 
 



Attachment 1 
 

COMPLETED CAPITAL PROJECTS - SECOND QUARTER FISCAL YEAR 2015 
 

 

Project Name Design 
Costs 

Construction 
Contract 

Construction 
Change Order 

Costs 

Construction 
Management 

Costs 
Total Project 

Costs 

School Zone 
Pedestrian Refuge 

Island 
$26,825 $115,734 $7,283 $41,161 $191,003 

On Call Sewer Main 
Point Repairs FY 14 $18,750 $200,825 -$3,278 $68,896 $285,193 

Reservoir No. 1 Joint 
Seal Repair $11,844 $132,000 $55,345 $37,405 $236,594 

CDBG 2013-2014 
Sidewalk Access 

Ramp Project 
$30,647 $94,960 $3,923 $73,394 $202,924 

Water Main 
Rehabilitation FY 13 $118,514 $2,408,852 $1,412,034 $289,304 $4,228,704  

Sycamore Canyon Rd 
Bank Repair Project $67,858 $107,525 -$3,153 $35,112 $207,342 

Valle Verde Well 
Upgrade $55,767 $92,300 $1,447 $17,803 $167,317 

TOTALS $330,205 $3,152,196 $1,473,601 $563,075 $5,519,077 



PROJECT TITLE FUNDING

First Quarter Airport Creeks  Downtown 
Parking Parks  General Fund  Facilities Other Streets Water Wastewater Waterfront Grants TOTAL PROJECT 

COSTS
Zone 6 (Fiscal Year 
13) Pavement 
Preparation (1)

64,065$           1,059,175$     20,950$            512,196$          1,656,386$             

State Route 192 
Utility Adjustments 118,852$          118,852$                

1,775,238$             

PROJECT TITLE FUNDING

Second Quarter Airport Creeks  Downtown 
Parking Parks  General Fund  Facilities Other Streets Water Wastewater Waterfront Grants

TOTAL PROJECT 
COSTS

School Zone Ped 
Refuge Island (1) 38,358$          152,645$          191,003$                

On Call Sewer Main 
Point Repairs FY 14 285,193$          285,193$                

Reservoir No. 1 Joint 
Seal Repair 236,594$          236,594$                

CDBG 2013-2014 
Sidewalk Access 
Ramp Project (2)

104,041$        98,883$            202,924$                

Water Main 
Rehabilitation FY 13 4,228,704$       4,228,704$             

Sycamore Cyn Rd 
Bank Repair Project 207,342$          207,342$                

Valle Verde Well 
Upgrade 167,317$          167,317$                

5,519,077$             
(2) Community Development Block Grant

Airport Creeks  Downtown
 Parking Parks  General 

Fund  Facilities  Other Streets Water Wastewater Waterfront Grants

GRAND TOTAL 64,065$        1,201,574$  4,958,809$    285,193$       20,950$         763,724$       7,294,315$         
% 0.88% 16.47% 67.98% 3.91% 0.29% 10.47% 100.00%

FIRST QUARTER

(1) Local Surface Transportation Program & State Local Partnership Program Total First Quarter

SECOND QUARTER

(1) Measure A Total Second Quarter

Attachment 2



Facilities 
 $64,065  

0.88% 
Streets 

 $1,201,574  
16.47% 

Water 
 $4,958,809  

67.98% 

Wastewater 
 $285,193  

3.91% 

Waterfront 
 $20,950  

0.29% 

Grants 
 $763,724  

10.47% 

Completed Capital Projects Funding For Fiscal Year 2015 

Grand Total $7,294,315 

Attachment 3



Attachment 4 
 

CAPITAL PROJECTS WITH DESIGN AND 
CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

PROJECT CATEGORY 
DESIGN IN PROGRESS 

No. of 
Projects Total Value of Projects 

Airport 3 $4,271,035 
Parking 1 $199,395 
Creeks 2 $3,000,000 
Facilities 1 $1,463,744 
Public Works: Streets/Bridges 5 $24,235,655 
Public Works:Streets/Transportation 16 $17,440,712 
Public Works: Water/Wastewater 18 $48,877,907 

TOTAL 46 $99,488,448 

PROJECT CATEGORY 
CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 

No. of 
Projects 

Construction 
Contract Costs 

Parking 1 $113,494 

Successor Agency to the Redevelopment 
Agency of the City of Santa Barbara 2 $1,626,913 

Public Works: Streets/Bridges 4 $28,438,571 

Public Works: Streets/Transportation 5 $3,727,418 

Public Works: Water/Wastewater 9 $17,203,603 

Waterfront 1 $6,851,250 

TOTAL 22 $57,961,249 



Agenda Item No.  10 
 

File Code No.  160.03 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: March 3, 2015 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: City Attorney’s Office 
 
SUBJECT:  Conference With City Attorney – Pending Litigation  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council hold a closed session to consider pending litigation pursuant to subsection 
(d)(1) of section 54956.9 of the Government Code and take appropriate action as needed. 
 
The pending litigation is Debra A. Corral, et al., v. City of Santa Barbara, et al., SBSC 
Case No.1466439. 
 
SCHEDULING: Duration, 15 minutes; anytime 
 
REPORT:  None anticipated 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Ariel Calonne, City Attorney 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator's Office 


	1.DOC
	2.DOC
	3.DOC
	4.DOC
	5.DOC
	6.DOC
	7.PDF
	8.PDF
	9.PDF
	10.DOC
	11.DOC
	12.DOC
	13.PDF
	14.PDF
	15.PDF
	16.DOC
	17.PDF
	18.PDF
	19.PDF
	20.PDF
	21.DOC
	Mayor
	Bendy White
	MARCH 3, 2015
	AGENDA
	ORDER OF BUSINESS



